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ELECTRONIC MAIL 
vsanagustin@perma-fix.com 
 
Mr. Victor San Agustin     OCD-HW- E-07-200 
Perma-Fix of Orlando 
10100 Rocket Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32824 
 
  Orange County – HW/SW 
  Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. 
  HW - FLR000115469/SW - SO48-0152516-002 & FLD980559728 
  Long Form Consent Order Letter OGC #07-1790 
 
Dear Mr. San Augustin: 
 
A hazardous and solid waste compliance inspection was conducted at your facilities on 
December 6, 2006, and February 5, 2007, to ascertain their compliance status with 40 
CFR 260-268, adopted in Florida Administrative Code Chapter 62-730; Hazardous 
Waste Permit # 26919-HO-004; and Solid Waste Permit # SO48-0152516.  These 
inspections were conducted under the authority of Section 403.091, Florida Statutes, 
and Chapter 403, Part IV, Florida Statutes 
 
Perma-Fix of Orlando submitted a letter dated June 28, 2007, summarizing the 
corrective actions completed and responses to the violations cited and discussed during 
the June 14, 2007, meeting.  A second meeting was requested by the Department to 
discuss a supplemental environmental project (SEP) to offset a portion of the penalties 
assessed as a result of the reference inspections. 
 
Attached is the proposed long form consent order OGC #07-1790 that includes the 
requirements for the SEP for your review.  If you have questions concerning this matter, 
please e-mail Jeff Waters at Jeff.T.Waters@dep.state.fl.us or call at (407) 893-3328. 
Your response to this Consent Order should be mailed to Jeff Waters at the letterhead 
address above within 20 days of receipt. 

 
_____________________ 
F. Thomas Lubozynski for  
Vivian F. Garfein 
Director, Central District 

          Date: 11/2/2007   
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Attached: 
Long Form Consent Order 
Exhibit 1 
   
cc: Michael Redig, FDEP, Tallahassee, michael.redig@floridadep.net   
 Alan Annicella, EPA Region 4, annicella.alan@epa.gov 

Debby Valin, FDEP, Central District, debby.valin@floridadep.net  
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BEFORE THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION CENTRAL DISTRICT 
 
 Complainant, 
    OGC FILE NO. 07-1790 
vs.    HW-FLR000115469 
    SW-SO48-0152516-002  
    & FLD980559728 
 
 
Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. 
 
 
 Respondent. 
_______________________________________/ 

 

CONSENT ORDER 

 This Consent Order is entered into between the State of Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection ("Department") and Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. 

("Respondent") to reach settlement of certain matters at issue between the Department 

and Respondent. 

 The Department finds and the Respondent admits the following: 

 1. The Department is the administrative agency of the State of Florida having 

the power and duty to administer and enforce the provisions of the Florida Resource 

Recovery and Management Act, Sections 403.702, et seq., Florida Statutes, and the 

rules promulgated thereunder, Florida Administrative Code Chapter 62-730.  The 

Department has jurisdiction over the matters addressed in this Consent Order. 

 2. Respondent is a person within the meaning of Section 403.703(4), Florida 

Statutes. 
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 3. Respondent is a corporation which owns and operates a hazardous waste 

treatment, storage, and disposal (TSD) facility, a solid waste transfer station, and a 

used oil processing facility collectively referred to as the facilities (“Facilities”).  The 

Respondent's facilities are located at 10100 Rocket Boulevard (“Rocket Boulevard Site”) 

and 10225 General Drive (“General Drive Site”), Orlando, Florida 32824. 

 4. The facilities were inspected on December 6, 2006 and February 5, 2007.  

Based on the inspections the Department finds that the following violations occurred:  

 a. Respondent failed to conduct a hazardous waste determination on a 55-

gallon drum that contained an unknown liquid located at the General Drive facility, in 

violation of 40 Code Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 262.11, which has been adopted by 

reference in Florida Administrative Code Rule 62-730.160. 

 b. Respondent failed to clearly mark multiple waste containers that were 

being stored at the Rocket Boulevard Site with an accumulation start date, in violation of 

40 C.F.R. 262.34(a)(2). 

 c. Respondent failed to clearly mark the words “Hazardous Waste” on 

several containers that were being stored at the Rocket Boulevard Site, in violation of 

40 C.F.R. 262.34(a)(3). 

 d. Respondent failed to operate their facility to minimize the possibility of any 

unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste to the environment at the 

Rocket Boulevard Site, in violation of 40 C.F.R. 264.31. 

 e. Respondent failed to properly maintain several containers closed at the 

Rocket Boulevard Site, in violation with 40 C.F.R. 264.173(a). 
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 f. Respondent failed to properly label used oil containers with the words 

“Used Oil” at the General Drive Site, in violation of 40 C.F.R. 279.22(c)(1). 

 

Having reached a resolution of the matter Respondent and Department mutually agree 

and it is, 

 ORDERED: 

 5. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Consent Order, 

Respondent shall pay the Department $1,000.00 for costs and expenses incurred by the 

Department during the investigation of this matter and the preparation and tracking of 

this Consent Order.  Payment shall be made by cashier's check or money order.  The 

instrument shall be made payable to the “Department of Environmental Protection” and 

shall include thereon the OGC number assigned to this Consent Order and the notation 

“Ecosystem Management and Restoration Trust Fund” and mailed to the Department of 

Environmental Protection, 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32803. 

 6. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Consent Order, 

Respondent shall pay the Department $14,681.00 in settlement of the matters 

addressed in this Consent Order.  The civil penalty in this case includes three violations 

of $2,000.00 or more.   

 7. In lieu of making cash payment of $14,681.00 in civil penalties as set forth 

in paragraph six (6) above, Respondent has elected and the Department has approved 

for the Respondent to off-set up to $11,745.00 of this amount (that is, up to 80% of the 

civil penalty amount) by implementing a supplemental environmental project (“SEP”). 

The value of the SEP shall be one and a half times the civil penalty off-set amount, 
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which in this case is the equivalent of at least $17,617.00.  Notwithstanding the election 

to implement the SEP, payment of $3,936.00, which includes $2,936 (20% of the civil 

penalty amount) and $1,000.00 Department costs, must be paid within thirty (30) days 

of the effective date of the Consent Order and shall be made payable to the 

“Department of Environmental Protection” and shall include thereon the OGC #07-1790 

and the notation “Ecosystem Management and Restoration Trust Fund” and mailed to 

the Department of Environmental Protection, 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 

32803. 

 a. As the SEP, Respondent will provide lab packing services, transportation 

and treatment or disposal for excess, unused, deteriorated or out-of-date chemicals at 

schools in the state of Florida in conjunction with Florida’s School Chemical Cleanout 

Campaign (“SC3”).  Lab packing services will include chemical identification, 

segregation, packaging, labeling and preparation of shipping documents and manifests. 

 b. Costs for services provided shall be in accordance with the rate sheet, 

attached as Exhibit I. 

 c. The schools that will be the recipient of such services will be selected and 

identified by the Department. 

 d. All lab packing services that occur at the school will be performed during 

non-school hours. 

 e. Respondent shall submit monthly reports to the Department, including 

documentation of costs and claimed expenses by the fifteenth day of each calendar 

month for the preceding month until completion of the SEP.  After reviewing the 

submitted documentation, the Department may request additional information.  
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Respondent shall respond to the Department’s request for additional information within 

two weeks of the dated request.  The Department may reject claims for expenditures 

that are not supported by documentation or exceed the cost schedule in Exhibit I.   As 

the SEP proceeds, costs of services rendered will be subtracted from the total SEP 

amount.  School chemical cleanouts shall continue to be performed by the Respondent 

until performance in full, $17,617.00, has been completed.  Respondent shall complete 

the entire SEP within one (1) year of the effective date of this Order, and shall submit a 

notification of completion within thirty (30) days of the date of the final disposal event.  

The notification of completion shall include documentation of all cost and claimed credits 

not previously approved by the Department. 

 f. In the event, Respondent fails to timely submit any requested information 

to the Department, fails to complete implementation of the SEP, or otherwise fails to 

comply with any provision of this paragraph, the SEP payment option shall be forfeited 

and the entire amount of civil penalties shall be due from the Respondent to the 

Department within thirty (30) days of Department notice, less in kind off-set credits 

previously approved by the Department. 

 g. If upon review of the notification of completion, the Department determines 

that the project cannot be accepted due to a substantially incomplete notification of 

completion or due to substantial deviations from the approved SEP, Respondent shall 

be notified, in writing, of the reason(s) which prevent the acceptance of the project.  

Respondent shall correct and redress all of the matters at issue and submit, by certified 

mail, a new notification of completion within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the 

Department’s notice.  If upon review of the new submittal, the Department determines 
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that the SEP is still incomplete or not in accordance with the approved proposal, the 

SEP penalty payment option shall be forfeited and the entire amount of civil penalty 

shall be due from the Respondent to the Department within thirty (30) days of 

Department notice. 

 8. If any event, including administrative or judicial challenges by third parties 

unrelated to the Respondent, occurs which causes delay or the reasonable likelihood of 

delay, in complying with the requirements of this Consent Order, Respondent shall have 

the burden of proving the delay was or will be caused by circumstances beyond the 

reasonable control of the Respondent and could not have been or cannot be overcome 

by Respondent's due diligence. Economic circumstances shall not be considered 

circumstances beyond the control of Respondent, nor shall the failure of a contractor, 

subcontractor, materialman or other agent (collectively referred to as "contractor") to 

whom responsibility for performance is delegated to meet contractually imposed 

deadlines be a cause beyond the control of Respondent, unless the cause of the 

contractor's late performance was also beyond the contractor's control.  Upon 

occurrence of an event causing delay, or upon becoming aware of a potential for delay, 

Respondent shall notify the Department orally within 24 hours or by the next working 

day and shall, within seven calendar days of oral notification to the Department, notify 

the Department in writing of the anticipated length and cause of the delay, the measures 

taken or to be taken to prevent or minimize the delay and the timetable by which 

Respondent intends to implement these measures.  If the parties can agree that the 

delay or anticipated delay has been or will be caused by circumstances beyond the 

reasonable control of Respondent, the time for performance hereunder shall be 
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extended for a period equal to the agreed delay resulting from such circumstances. 

Such agreement shall adopt all reasonable measures necessary to avoid or minimize 

delay.  Failure of Respondent to comply with the notice requirements of this Paragraph 

in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of Respondent's right to request an 

extension of time for compliance with the requirements of this Consent Order.  

 9. Respondent shall allow all authorized representatives of the Department 

access to the property and facilities at reasonable times for the purpose of determining 

compliance with the terms of this Consent Order and the rules and statutes of the 

Department.  

 10. Entry of this Consent Order does not relieve Respondent of the need to 

comply with applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations or ordinances.   

 11. The terms and conditions set forth in this Consent Order may be enforced 

in a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 120.69 and 403.121, Florida 

Statutes. Failure to comply with the terms of this Consent Order shall constitute a 

violation of Section 403.727(1), Florida Statutes. 

 12. Respondent is fully aware that a violation of the terms of this Consent 

Order may subject Respondent to judicial imposition of damages, civil penalties of up to 

$50,000 per day per violation and criminal penalties. 

 13. Persons who are not parties to this Consent Order but whose substantial 

interests are affected by this Consent Order have a right, pursuant to Sections 120.569 

and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to petition for an administrative hearing on it.  The Petition 

must contain the information set forth below and must be filed (received) at the 

Department's Office of General Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard MS-35, 
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Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, within 21 days of receipt of this notice.  A copy of the 

Petition must also be mailed at the time of filing to the District Office named above at 

the address indicated.  Failure to file a petition within the 21 days constitutes a waiver of 

any right such person has to an administrative hearing pursuant to Sections 120.569 

and 120.57, Florida Statutes.   

 The petition shall contain the following information:  (a) The name, address, and 

telephone number of each petitioner; the Department's Consent Order identification 

number and the county in which the subject matter or activity is located; (b) A statement 

of how and when each petitioner received notice of the Consent Order; (c) A statement 

of how each petitioner's substantial interests are affected by the Consent Order; (d) A 

statement of the material facts disputed by petitioner, if any; (e) A statement of facts 

which petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the Consent Order; (f) A 

statement of which rules or statutes petitioner contends require reversal or modification 

of the Consent Order; (g) A statement of the relief sought by petitioner, stating precisely 

the action petitioner wants the Department to take with respect to the Consent Order.   

 If a petition is filed, the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate 

agency action.  Accordingly, the Department's final action may be different from the 

position taken by it in this Notice.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected 

by any decision of the Department with regard to the subject Consent Order have the 

right to petition to become a party to the proceeding.  The petition must conform to the 

requirements specified above and be filed (received) within 21 days of receipt of this 

notice in the Office of General Counsel at the above address of the Department.  Failure 

to petition within the allowed time frame constitutes a waiver of any right such person 
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has to request a hearing under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, and to 

participate as a party to this proceeding.  Any subsequent intervention will only be at the 

approval of the presiding officer upon motion filed pursuant to Rule 28-106.205, Florida 

Administrative Code.  

 A person whose substantial interests are affected by the Consent Order may file 

a timely petition for an administrative hearing under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, 

Florida Statutes, or may choose to pursue mediation as an alternative remedy under 

Section 120.573, Florida Statutes, before the deadline for filing a petition.  Choosing 

mediation will not adversely affect the right to a hearing if mediation does not result in a 

settlement.  The procedures for pursuing mediation are set forth below. 

 Mediation may only take place if the Department and all the parties to the 

proceeding agree that mediation is appropriate.  A person may pursue mediation by 

reaching a mediation agreement with all parties to the proceeding (which include the 

Respondent, the Department, and any person who has filed a timely and sufficient 

petition for a hearing) and by showing how the substantial interests of each mediating 

party are affected by the Consent Order.  The agreement must be filed in (received by) 

the Office of General Counsel of the Department at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, 

Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, within 10 days after the deadline as 

set forth above for the filing of a petition. 

 The agreement to mediate must include the following: 

 (a)  The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of any persons who may 

attend the mediation; 
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 (b)  The name, address, and telephone number of the mediator selected by the 

parties, or a provision for selecting a mediator within a specified time; 

 (c)  The agreed allocation of the costs and fees associated with the mediation; 

 (d)  The agreement of the parties on the confidentiality of discussions and 

documents introduced during mediation; 

 (e)  The date, time, and place of the first mediation session, or a deadline for 

holding the first session, if no mediator has yet been chosen; 

 (f)  The name of each party’s representative who shall have authority to settle or 

recommend settlement; and 

 (g)  Either an explanation of how the substantial interests of each mediating party 

will be affected by the action or proposed action addressed in this notice of intent or a 

statement clearly identifying the petition for hearing that each party has already filed, 

and incorporating it by reference. 

 (h)  The signatures of all parties or their authorized representatives. 

 As provided in Section 120.573, Florida Statutes, the timely agreement of all 

parties to mediate will toll the time limitations imposed by Sections 120.569 and 120.57, 

Florida Statutes, for requesting and holding an administrative hearing.   Unless 

otherwise agreed by the parties, the mediation must be concluded within sixty days of 

the execution of the agreement.  If mediation results in settlement of the administrative 

dispute, the Department must enter a final order incorporating the agreement of the 

parties.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by such a modified final 

decision of the Department have a right to petition for a hearing only in accordance with 

the requirements for such petitions set forth above, and must therefore file their petitions 
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within 21 days of receipt of this notice.  If mediation terminates without settlement of the 

dispute, the Department shall notify all parties in writing that the administrative hearing 

processes under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, remain available for 

disposition of the dispute, and the notice will specify the deadlines that then will apply 

for challenging the agency action and electing remedies under those two statutes. 

 14. The Department hereby expressly reserves the right to initiate appropriate 

legal action to prevent or prohibit any violations of applicable statutes, or the rules 

promulgated thereunder that are not specifically addressed by the terms of this Consent 

Order, including but not limited to undisclosed releases, contamination or polluting 

conditions.    

 15. The Department, for and in consideration of the complete and timely 

performance by Respondent of the obligations agreed to in this Consent Order, hereby 

waives its right to seek judicial imposition of damages or civil penalties for alleged 

violations outlined in this Consent Order. 

 16. Respondent acknowledges and waives its right to an administrative 

hearing pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, on the terms of this 

Consent Order.  Respondent acknowledges its right to appeal the terms of this Consent 

Order pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida Statutes, and waives that right upon signing 

this Consent Order. 

 17. No modifications of the terms of this Consent Order shall be effective until 

reduced to writing and executed by both Respondent and the Department. 
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 18. All submittals relative to this Consent Order shall be sent to Jeff Waters, 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Orlando, 

Florida 32399-2400 or jeff.t.waters@dep.state.fl.us. 

 19. In the event of a sale or conveyance of the Facilities, including either the 

Rocket Boulevard Site or the General Drive Site or both, or of the real property upon 

which either Facilities is located, if all of the requirements of this Consent Order have 

not been fully satisfied, Respondent shall, at least 30 days prior to the sale or 

conveyance of the property or Facility: (1) notify the Department of such sale or 

conveyance, (2) provide the name and address of the purchaser, or operator, or 

person(s) in control of the Facility, and (3) provide a copy of this Consent Order with all 

attachments to the new owner.  The sale or conveyance of the Facilities, or the real 

property upon which the Facilities are located shall not relieve the Respondent of the 

obligations imposed in this Consent Order. 

 20. This Consent Order is a settlement of the Department’s civil and 

administrative authority arising under Florida law to resolve the matters addressed 

herein. This Consent Order is not a settlement of any criminal liabilities which may arise 

under Florida law, nor is it a settlement of any violation which may be prosecuted 

criminally or civilly under federal law. 

21. This Consent Order is a final order of the Department pursuant to Section 

120.52(7), Florida Statutes, and it is final and effective on the date filed with the Clerk of 

the Department unless a Petition for Administrative Hearing is filed in accordance with 

Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.  Upon the timely filing of a petition this Consent Order will 

not be effective until further order of the Department. 
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FOR THE RESPONDENTS: 
 
 
I,                                            on behalf of                                                    , HEREBY 
ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THE SETTLEMENT OFFER IDENTIFIED ABOVE. 
 
By: ______________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date: ____________________ 
 
 
 

FOR DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 
 
 
 

DONE AND ENTERED this _____ day of ___________________, 2007. 
 
 
      STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 
      OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 
            
        Vivian F. Garfein 
        Director, Central District 
 
 
 
Filed, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52, F.S., with the designated 
Department Clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged. 
 
 
                                     _____________ 
Clerk    Date 
 
 
cc:  
Lea Crandall, Agency Clerk, OGC, MS 35 
Mike Redig, FDEP, Tallahassee, michael.redig@floridadep.net   
Alan Annicella, EPA Region 4, annicella.alan@epa.gov 
 



Exhibit 1

Part l Disposal Lab-Packs

Waste type Container Size & Pricing
5 gal 30 gal 55 gal

Flammable Liquids LP (*) $37.50 $112.50 $150

Waste paint related material $37.50 $112.50 $150.00

Latex paint in cans $17.50 $52.50 $70.00

Poison flammable solid LP $187.50 $356.00 $600

Oxidizers LP $187.50 $356.00 $600

Aerosols LP $187.50 $281.25 $350

Corrosive LP (**) $62.50 $187.50 $250

Reactive Compounds $270.00 $750.00 $1,000.00

Mercury, elem/devices $412.50 $1,237.50 $1,650

Bluk Non-hazardous (Oil) $15.00 $45.00 $60.00 <1000 ppm Haolgens, >5000
BTU

Bulk Flammable Liquids $25.00 $67.50 $90.00 >10,000 BTU, <5000 ppm 
Haolgens, <4" solid, pH 5-9,
no PCB's

Bulk Poisons $102.50 $307.50 $410.00 no reactives
max 225# max 450#

Bulk Oxidizers $102.50 $307.50 $410.00 no reactives
max 225# max 450#

Fluorescent Lamps n/a box                          4-ft
box                          8-ft

Cylinders case by case

(*) Fuel Blendable
(**) Treatable Inorganic Acid/Base
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May 8, 2007 

 
ELECTRONIC MAIL 
vsanagustin@perma-fix.com 
 
Mr. Victor San Agustin     OWL-HW- E-07-009 
Perma-Fix of Orlando 
10100 Rocket Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32824 
 
  Orange County – HW 
  Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. 
  HW - FLR000115469/SW - SO48-0152516-002 & FLD980559728 
  Warning Letter 
 
 
Dear Mr. San Agustin: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to advise you of possible violations of law for which you may 
be responsible, and to seek your cooperation in resolving the matter.  A hazardous 
waste compliance inspection was conducted at your facility on December 6, 2006 and 
February 5, 2007.  These inspections were conducted under the authority of Section 
403.091, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 403, Part IV, Florida Statutes in order to 
determine the compliance status of your facility with 40 CFR 260 through 268, adopted 
in Florida Administrative Code Chapter 62-730. 
 
During the inspection, possible violations of Florida Statutes and Rules regarding solid 
and hazardous waste were noted.  These violations are set forth in "Summary of 
Potential Noncompliance Items and Recommended Corrective Actions" of the attached 
inspection report.   
 
The activities observed during the Department’s field inspections and any activity at 
your facility that may be contributing to violations of the above described statutes and 
rules should be ceased immediately.   
 
The Department has calculated penalties for the violations addressed above.  The 
penalty work sheet is enclosed.  The penalty amount was calculated in accordance with 
the U.S. EPA RCRA Civil Penalty Policy and the Department’s Guidelines for 
Characterizing RCRA Violations.  A copy of the documents is available upon request.   
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Please contact Jeff Waters, Solid Waste Section, by telephone at (407) 893-3328 or by 
e-mail at jeff.t.waters@dep.state.fl.us within 10 days of receipt of this letter to schedule 
an informal conference concerning resolution of this matter.  The Department is 
interested in reviewing any facts you may have that will assist in determining whether 
any violations have occurred and whether any penalties are appropriate. You may bring 
anyone with you to the meeting that you feel could help resolve this matter. 
 
This Warning Letter is part of an agency investigation, preliminary to agency action in 
accordance with Section 120.57(5), Florida Statutes.  We look forward to your 
cooperation in completing the investigation and resolution of this matter. 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
 
 

      _ 
      Vivian F. Garfein 

Director, Central District 
 
      May 8, 2007 
      Date 
 
VFG/dms 
 
Enclosures: RCRA Inspection Report 

Penalty Worksheet 
   
cc: Michael Redig, FDEP, Tallahassee, michael.redig@floridadep.net   
 Alan Annicella, EPA Region 4, annicella.alan@epa.gov 

Debby Valin, FDEP, Central District, debby.valin@floridadep.net  
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Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection 
Central District 
3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232 
Orlando, Florida 32803-3767 

Charlie Crist 
Governor 
 
Jeff Kottkamp 
Lt. Governor 
 
Michael W. Sole 
Secretary 

 
INSPECTION REPORT 

 

1. INSPECTION TYPE: Routine Complaint Follow-Up Permitting Pre-Arranged 

FACILITY NAME Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. EPA ID # FLD980559728 & 
FLR000115469 

STREET ADDRESS 10100 Rocket Blvd. and 10225 General Dr., Orlando Florida 32824 

EMAIL ADDRESS kschmuggerow@perma-fix.com 
 
COUNTY 

 
Orange 

 
PHONE 

 
770-587-9898 

 
DATES 

 
12/6/2006 &  
2/5/2007 

 
TIMES 

 
9:00 am & 
9:00 am  

NOTIFIED AS:  N/A   CURRENT STATUS: 

 Non Handler Non Handler 
 CESQG (<100 kg/mo.) CESQG (<100 kg/mo.) 
 SQG (100-1000 kg/mo.) SQG (100-1000 kg/mo.) 
 Generator (>1000 kg/mo.) Generator (>1000 kg/mo.) 
 Transporter Transporter 
 Transfer Facility Transfer Facility 
 Interim Status TSD Facility Interim Status TSD Facility 
 TSD Facility TSD Facility 

 Unit Type(s): Storage  Unit Type(s): Storage 
 Exempt Treatment Facility Exempt Treatment Facility 
 Used Oil:  Transporter Used Oil:  Transporter 

2. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS: 
 
  40 CFR 261.5   40 CFR 262   40 CFR 263   40 CFR 264 
  40 CFR 265   40 CFR 266   40 CFR 268   40 CFR 273 
  40 CFR 279   40 CFR 280   62-701, FAC   62-710, FAC  
  62-730, FAC  62-737, FAC   62-761, FAC 
 
3. RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL(s): 

Mike Avery, General Manager, Perma-Fix  
4. INSPECTION PARTICIPANTS: 

Janine Kraemer, FDEP, Hazardous Waste 
Jeff Waters, FDEP, Solid & Hazardous Waste 
 

Kevin Schmuggerow, Perma-Fix, 
VP of Logistics,  
John MacDonald, Perma-Fix,  
Solid Waste Manager 
Victor L. San Agustin, Perma-Fix, 
Director of Compliance 
Raj Singh, Perma-Fix, 
Operations Manager 
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5. LATITUDE/LONGITUDE: 28°25’04” / 81°23’10” 
6. NAICS Code:   562112   
7. TYPE OF OWNERSHIP:    Private     Federal     State     County     Municipal 
8. HAZARDOUS WASTE PERMIT #: 26919-HO-004 ISSUED: 11/14/03 EXPIRES: 11/06/08 
 SOLID WASTE PERMIT #:  SO48-0152516-002      ISSUED:  03/21/05 EXPIRES: 01/19/10  
 

9. INTRODUCTION: 
 

On December 6, 2006, and February 5, 2007, Jeff Waters and Janine Kraemer, Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP), inspected both Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. (Perma-Fix) locations for 
compliance with solid and hazardous waste regulations.  Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc., located at 10100 
Rocket Boulevard, is a hazardous waste transporter, a 10-day hazardous waste transfer facility and a 
permitted hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal facility. Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc., located at 
10225 General Drive, Orlando, Orange County, Florida, is a used oil transporter, solid waste transfer 
facility, and permitted solid waste processing facility.   
 

10. HAZARDOUS WASTE INSPECTION HISTORY: 
 

Operations have been located at these locations since 1985 but the business was originally called Chemical 
Conservation Corporation (Chemcon).  The facility changed names to Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. in 2001.  
The facility has been inspected yearly since 1985.  The following information lists specific inspections: 
 
August 1998 
The facility was in compliance at the time of the inspection. 
 
September 1998 
The facility was out of compliance at the time of the inspection.  The facility was cited for failure to provide 
annual training on hazardous waste regulations.  The facility submitted the records at a later date and the 
case was closed without enforcement. 
 
September 1999 
The facility was out of compliance at the time of the inspection.  The facility was cited for the following 
violations: failure to conduct proper waste determinations and appropriate land ban restrictions, failure to 
update contingency plan, failure to segregate hazardous waste, failure to conduct annual hazardous waste 
training, failure to maintain the facility to minimize sudden releases, failure to submit annual verification of 
insurance, and failure to maintain current financial assurance.  The case was closed through the execution of 
a Short Form Consent Order including the assessment of $1700.00 in civil penalties. 
 
November 1999 
The facility was in compliance at the time of the inspection. 
 
June 2000 
The facility was out of compliance at the time of the inspection.  The facility was cited for the following 
violations: storing non-hazardous waste in the hazardous waste storage area, and failure to notify the 
Department of ability to meet a specific permit condition.  Specifically, Chemcon was using an unacceptable 
surety company for insurance.  The case was resolved by executed Consent Order No. 00-1471 and the 
assessment of $2,550.00 in civil penalties. 
 
May and August 2001 
The facility was out of compliance at the time of the inspection.  The facility was cited for the following 
violations: failure to maintain the facility to minimize sudden releases, failure to utilize the waste analysis 
plan and violating specific permit condition.  Specifically, Chemcon failed to rectify manifest discrepancies 
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within 15 days of receipt of the waste.  The case was resolved by executed Consent Order No. 02-0027 and 
the assessment of $12,100.00 in civil penalties. 
 
April 2002 
The facility was out of compliance at the time of the inspection.  The facility was cited for the following 
violations: failure to label hazardous waste containers, failure to maintain hazardous waste containers 
closed, failure to conduct weekly inspections, failure to label hazardous waste containers with an 
accumulation start date, storing over the capacity of facility as stated in the permit, failure to meet land 
disposal treatment standards, and storing transfer waste longer than 10 days.  The case was resolved by 
executed Consent Order No. 02-2060 and the assessment of $13,350.00 in civil penalties. 
 
March 2003 
The facility was out of compliance at the time of the inspection. The facility had 4 drums stored longer than 
1 year; however, the drums were shipped off-site the day after the inspection.  The Department took no 
further action. 
 
May 2004 
The facility was out of compliance at the time of the inspection and numerous violations were cited 
including: exceeding hazardous waste storage requirements as stated in the facility’s permit, hazardous 
waste determination process, hazardous waste training requirements, used oil violations, and storage tank 
violations.  The case was resolved by executed Consent Order No. 04-1771 and the assessment of 
$51,845.00 in civil penalties. 
 
April 2006 
An inspection was conducted as a result of a fire that was reported to the State Warning Point (SWP) on 
April 19, 2006.  The facility was out of compliance with their hazardous waste permit specific condition 
#14, Maintenance and Operation.  Specifically, the facility allowed a fire to occur due to improper storage 
and/or management of incompatible hazardous waste.  As requested the facility updated their 
operation/contingency plan.  The case was resolved by executed Consent Order No. 06-1668 and the 
assessment of $10,950.00 in civil penalties. 
 

11. PROCESS DESCRIPTION: 
 
Solid Waste Transfer and Used Oil Facility (10225 General Drive): 
 
Perma-Fix gave notification of its intent to use a general permit for the operation of a solid waste transfer 
station (facility).  The Department acknowledged the general permit on March 29 1999, with an effective 
date of operations to begin on or about April 18, 1999.  The general permit (SO48-0152516-001) expired 
on April 5, 2004.  A permit application for a waste processing facility, required by revisions to Chapter 
62-701, F.A.C. adopted May 27, 2001, was approved by the Department on March 21, 2006.  This permit 
(SO48-0152516-002) is set to expire on January 19, 2010.  The facility is currently in the process of 
applying for a Used Oil Processor Permit from the Department. 
 
Non-hazardous waste is taken to this facility for storage, consolidation, solidification, and finally 
transportation to a disposal facility.  Waste is not disposed of at the Perma-Fix of Orlando facility.  The 
facility accepts non-hazardous waste such as used oil, used oil filters, oily water, oily solid waste, waste 
coolant, and non-hazardous liquids (resins, polymers, etc.).    
 
Used oil is consolidated in an 18,367-gallon double walled above ground storage tank, then taken to 
Perma-Fix, Ft. Lauderdale, for processing.  Oily wastewater is consolidated in one 7,000-gallon tanker 
and a second 7,000-gallon tanker is used to store anti-freeze, both of which are in secondary containment.  
Oily solid waste is either sent for energy recovery to Montenay Energy or Wheelabrator, Ft. Lauderdale, 
or if the BTUs are less than 4,000, the material is sent to Waste Management’s Okeechobee Landfill in 
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South Florida.  At the time of inspection waste antifreeze was taken to Cliff Berry; however, Morgan 
Environmental will be used in the future.  Oily water, used oil, and used oil filters are taken to Perma-Fix 
of Ft. Lauderdale, who transports the used oil filters to U.S. Foundry for processing.    
 
The supporting documentation submitted with the solid waste permit application in 2004 indicated that 
the facility would receive non-hazardous solid waste in both liquid and solid forms.  Also, the proposed 
operation would consist mainly of consolidation of the non-hazardous solid waste prior to transportation 
offsite for disposal and/or treatment.  The majority of waste would be shipped to a landfill for disposal 
and the remaining would be shipped for incineration at waste to energy facilities.  
 
Solid waste containers are stored in three areas: Container Storage Area #1 (CSA #1), Container Storage 
Area #2 (CSA #2), and Container Storage Area #3 (CSA #3).  CSA #1 is referred to as the upper pad, 
used to off load material from trailers and store materials for processing, and can store up to six hundred 
and forty 55-gallon drums. 
 
CSA #2 is referred to as the lower pad, used for processing materials stored in this area, and can store up 
to six hundred and forty 55-gallon drums and up to four 50-cubic yard roll-offs (approximately 40,500-
gallons).  The waste stored in CSA #2 consist of soils, grease, empty steel drums, debris, fertilizer, 
residues and uncrushed oil filters to be recycled. 
 
CSA #3 is referred to as the bulk storage area and consists of an 18,367-gallon double walled above 
ground storage tank used to store used oil.  This area will also store one 50-cubic yard roll-off. 
 
Solid wastes are bulked in roll-off containers.  Solid waste that can not be processed will be stored in 
CSA #1 to be loaded onto transport vehicles for off-site disposal.  Non-hazardous liquid wastes are 
pumped into stationary tankers for bulking purposes; the facility states in their operation plan that they 
plan on utilizing above ground storage tanks in the future.  Non-hazardous semi-solids are bulked in roll-
off containers and then mixed with inert materials such as fly ash, sawdust, or polyacrylamide gel to 
absorb any liquids. Unauthorized waste will not be stored on site but is directed to the Perma-Fix Orlando 
location at 10100 Rocket Road..              
 
Additionally, the facility conducts routine maintenance on their fleet of trucks.  The truck maintenance 
area generates used oil, used oil filters, waste coolant and shop towels.   
 
Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage and Disposal (TSD) Facility (10100 Rocket Boulevard): 
 
Perma-Fix collects hazardous waste from generators using Perma-Fix’s own transportation services as well 
as other registered hazardous waste transporters.  Generators serviced by Perma-Fix are those that generate 
hazardous waste that is exclusive of explosive, radioactive, or biomedical waste.  Perma-Fix operates under 
hazardous waste storage permit number 26919-HO-004, issued November 14, 2003. 
 
Before collecting any waste, the generator’s request is reviewed to determine if the waste stream for 
collection has passed an evaluation process. Perma-Fix requires that each new waste stream be tested and 
that each waste stream’s acceptance be updated yearly.  The evaluation process used is described in detail in 
the waste analysis plan section of the facility’s permit application.  Based on the regulatory status of the 
waste stream and the conditions set forth in the permit that authorizes Perma-Fix to manage hazardous 
waste, Perma Fix then decides whether to accept the waste. 
 
Perma-Fix collects hazardous waste and stores the material in its warehouse for up to a year before 
transporting the waste to an off-site disposal facility.  Perma-Fix uses the 10-day transfer facility status when 
possible in order to avoid re-manifesting, record keeping, reporting, and other more stringent permit 
requirements.  Waste stored for a period longer than ten days is transferred to Perma-Fix’s designated 



“More Protection, Less Process” 
www.dep.state.fl.us 

 

storage facility.  Perma-Fix then amends the incoming manifest to reflect the change, the containers are 
relabeled, and the waste is managed in accordance with the permit requirements.  
 
Hazardous wastes are segregated at the facility according to compatibility groups as outlined in their permit.  
Storage areas have secondary containment to minimize and prevent possible releases to the environment. 
 
At the time of and prior to the December 6, 2006, inspection Perma-Fix was consolidating electroplating 
sludge, lab-packs, and other waste streams.  These waste streams consist of compatible wastes that are 
subject to the same treatment method or technology to meet the land disposal restriction requirements.  
Bulking and consolidation take place in the consolidation building at the north end of the property.  Lab-
packs are processed in this area in an enclosure similar to a fume hood, which is vented to the outside.  An 
eyewash, safety shower, spill kit, and fire extinguisher are located in this area.  An aerosol can puncturing 
device is also located in this area.  Aerosol cans are punctured and the contents are managed as hazardous 
waste.  The empty cans are managed as solid waste.  The parking lot of the facility is sloped towards the 
northwest corner.  A sump (Figure 14) installed in the northwest corner is connected to valves to ensure 
there are no releases to the facility’s retention pond. 
 

12. INSPECTION: 
 
December 6, 2006 
 
Solid Waste Transfer and Used Oil Facility (10225 General Drive) 
 
Inspectors met with John MacDonald at the facility.  Mr. MacDonald accompanied inspectors during the 
inspection of both facilities.  Mr. Schmuggerow accompanied inspectors during the inspection of the 
Rocket Boulevard facility. 
 
In Container Storage Area #1 three containers of used oil were being stored that had failed their Dexsil 
test for halogen content at the generator’s site.  These containers were not being managed as hazardous 
waste [40 CFR 279.44(c)]. Six additional drums from the same waste generator were also located here 
and had not yet been tested [40 CFR 279.44(a)].  The drums were received in September 2006 and the 
customer had not been notified as of the date of the inspection that they likely contained hazardous waste.  
In order to ensure that used oil is not a hazardous waste, the transporter must determine if the used oil 
contains halogens above or below 1000 ppm.  Used oil that fails screening is assumed to contain 
hazardous waste. 
 
In the solidification area were three 55-gallon drums of waste:  one 55-gallon drum had a D008 hazardous 
waste code on the label, one 55-gallon drum was labeled “photographic waste”, and the third 55-gallon 
drum was labeled “gold solution”.  Mr. MacDonald explained that the waste in the first drum was non-
hazardous and the Perma-Fix driver failed to remove the hazardous waste label.  Mr. MacDonald stated 
that the second drum had analytical results showing the contents had silver below 5 ppm.  Finally, Mr. 
MacDonald stated that the third drum of gold solution was a final gold rinse solution; therefore, also non-
hazardous solid waste.  The inspectors were satisfied with the explanation and no documentation was 
requested. 
 
Waste was observed in the solidification roll off, which was awaiting additional waste and solidifying 
additives. 
 
The following roll-off containers were on site, labeled, and in secondary containment: 

1. Two 7,000-gallon tankers are used to store oily water and were empty at the time of inspection; the 
tankers had been recently driven off-site for disposal. 

2. One roll off of used oil filters; this container is emptied three to four times a year. 
3. Additional roll-off containers for solid waste storage. 
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In addition the facility has one 18,367-gallon used oil aboveground storage tank.  This tank is double 
walled and in good condition.  At the time of the December 6, 2006, inspection the used oil piping 
consisted of one or several pieces of hose that had been repaired with duct tape. 
 
Adjacent to the solid waste area is the truck maintenance shop.  The facility is no longer using their parts 
washer; however, one 55-gallon drum of mineral spirits was on site.  In addition, the following containers 
were in the area: 

1. Two 55-gallon drums of used oil. 
2. Two 5-gallon containers of used oil.  These containers were not properly labeled as used oil. [40 

CFR 279.22(c)] 
3. One 55-gallon of unknown waste.  A proper waste determination needs to be conducted on this 

drum [40 CFR 262.11] 
 

The Solid Waste Transfer and Used Oil Facility (10225 General Drive) was not in full compliance during 
this inspection. 
 
Hazardous Waste TSD Facility (10100 Rocket Boulevard) 
 
Lab Pack and Bulking Consolidation Area 
 
Located in the consolidation area were two 55-gallon drums that contained smaller paint containers 
destined for solid waste disposal (Figures 1-7).  The majority of these containers were quart sized, open 
and not empty [40 CFR 264.31 and 264.173(a)].  Mr. Schmuggerow stated that the facility would go 
through the containers and empty them prior to disposal.  
 
Adjacent to this area was an open 55-gallon container [40 CFR 264.173(a)] of corrosive waste dated 
12/4/2006 (Figure 8).  In addition, seven 5-gallon containers were being used to combine smaller amounts 
of corrosives to help determine if they will be compatible; none of the containers were properly labeled or 
dated [40 CFR 262.34(a)(2) and 262.34(a)(3)] (Figure 9-12).  
 
Aerosol cans were being punctured in the consolidation area.  Waste accumulation drums were connected 
to a drum containing activated charcoal that acts as an air filtration device.  The carbon filter is changed 
out about every 6 months and disposed of as hazardous waste.  At the time of inspection several aerosol 
cans and oxygen canisters were not being managed in containers that were labeled or dated properly [40 
CFR 262.34(a)(2) and 262.34(a)(3)]   (Figures 13, 15 & 16).  Additionally, one 55-gallon container, 
labeled “oxidizer”, appeared to be leaking [40 CFR 264.31] (Figure 14). 
 
Outside the Lab Pack and Bulking Consolidation Area the facility was storing roll off containers and 
trailers for consolidating metal bearing waste (Figures 17 and 18).  At the time of the inspection there 
were three trailers containing hazardous waste.  Two of the trailers were dated November 21, 2006 and 
the other was dated September 11, 2006. 
 
On the south side of the Lab Pack and Bulking Consolidation Area were two roll-off containers 
containing non-hazardous solid waste.  One of the roll-offs contained a smaller container of hazardous 
waste that was open and not empty [40 CFR 264.31 and 264.173(a)] (Figures 20-22). 
 
Storage Area 
 
Wastes stored in the permitted storage area were segregated according to compatibility groups as outlined in 
the permit.  Wastes are staged along the south, east, and north walls of the building.  The west wall contains 
the bay doors leading to the loading dock. 
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The storage area contained, approximately, the following number of hazardous waste containers 
(excluding cardboard boxes): 

• Thirty-one 250-gallon totes 
• Four hundred and fifteen 55-gallon drums 
• Forty 30-gallon containers 
• Twenty-three 20-gallon containers 
• Four 10-gallon containers 
• Forty-nine 5-gallon containers 

 
In total, there was approximately 32,520 gallons of waste in the permitted TSD portion of the facility. 
No containers of waste were being stored on the loading dock. 

There were four trailers in the loading dock area waiting to be off-loaded.  The dates the wastes were 
accepted at the facility ranged from November 30 to December 5, 2006. 
 
Record Review 
 
Records for 2006 were reviewed, which included: hazardous waste manifests, land disposal restriction 
notification forms, position descriptions, training records, contingency plan, waste analysis plan, 
inspections, and Biennial Report.  The contingency plan, position descriptions, and land disposal 
restriction notification forms were in compliance.  Training records were reviewed for Jesus Rivas, John 
MacDonald, and Jason Woodruff and found to be in compliance.   
 
The Hazardous Waste TSD Facility (10100 Rocket Boulevard) was not in full compliance during this 
inspection. 
 
February 5, 2007 
 
A follow up inspection was performed on February 5, 2007 at both locations.  Jeff Waters and Janine 
Kraemer met with Victor San Agustin and Raj Singh at the 10100 Rocket Road facility.  The inspection 
was performed to further assess issues observed during the December 6, 2006, inspection and to confirm 
that the facility had discontinued the hazardous waste consolidation process and had removed the majority 
of hazardous waste from the 10100 Rocket Road facility.   During a February 2, 2007 phone call, Mr. San 
Agustin stated that the vast majority of hazardous waste would be directed to the Perma-Fix of 
Gainesville facility.  Thus, the amount of waste stored at the Perma-Fix of Orlando location would be 
significantly reduced. 
 
Hazardous Waste TSD Facility (10100 Rocket Boulevard) 
 
Storage Area 
 
The amount of waste being stored in this area had been drastically reduced.  Facility representatives stated 
that some of the waste on site was awaiting transfer to the Gainesville location and that the remainder of 
the waste was from two customer contracts that are going to continue to be managed out of the Orlando 
location. 
 
During the February 2, 2007 phone call the Department verbally agreed to allow storage of paper 
documents in the Lab Pack and Bulking Consolidation Area because a concrete block wall separated the 
documents from waste in the Storage Area.  At the time of the inspection boxes of paper documents were 
being stored in the permitted storage area.  Inspectors requested the documents be moved to the Lab Pack 
and Bulking Consolidation Area and the facility complied.  In addition, the appropriate operation plan 
needs to be updated to reflect the recent operational changes. 
 



“More Protection, Less Process” 
www.dep.state.fl.us 

 

Lab Pack and Bulking Consolidation Area 
 
This area was empty with the exception of four 55-gallon drums that appeared to part of the clean out 
process. 
 
Solid Waste Transfer Facility (10225 General Drive) 
 
The inspectors performed the quarterly solid waste inspection for the transfer station and noted the 
following issues: 
 

a. Three drums of used oil observed during the December 6, 2006 inspection that were being held 
because they failed the halogen Dexsil Test, were still on site and were not being managed as 
hazardous waste [40 CFR 279.44(c)].  In addition, the six drums from the same generator that 
were noted in December were still on site and had still not been tested for halogens [40 CFR 
279.44(a)].  The inspectors recalled that the generator of the used oil also had six additional 
drums on site at the time of the December inspection that had not been halogen tested yet.  The 
inspectors inquired about their status and location and why the containers had not been managed 
properly. 
 
In a formal letter received on February 26, 2007, Perma-Fix stated that the three drums originally 
observed during the December 2006 inspection had been transported off site for hazardous waste 
disposal.  The additional six drums were tested for halogens via Dexsil test kit and four out of the 
six failed.  All of the drums were in the process of being disposed of properly. 
 

b. The integrity of the hose for the 18,367-gallon used oil aboveground storage tank was questioned 
at the time of the December 6, 2006, inspection.  Inspectors noted that the hose had been replaced 
with a new double walled hose. 

 
c. Used oil containers in the truck maintenance shop had been properly labeled as requested during 

the December 2006 inspection. 
 

d. The unknown 55-gallon drum of waste during the December 2006 inspection was determined to 
be water and was mixed in the solid waste solidification process. 

 
13. AREAS OF CONCERN: 

a. Paper documents should not be stored in the same area that waste is actively being stored. 
 
b. The Hazardous Waste Operation Plan associated with Permit # 26919-HO-004 needs to be 

updated to reflect the recent operational changes. 
 
14. SUMMARY OF POTENTIAL NON-COMPLIANCE ITEMS AND CORRECTIVE ACTIONS: 

a) Regulation: 40 CFR 262.11 – Waste Determination 
“A person who generates a solid waste must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste…”  
Specifically, Perma-Fix did not know the contents of a 55-gallon drum that was observed in the 
truck maintenance shop. 
 
Corrective Action: At the time of the February 5, 2007 inspection the container had been 
removed.  Facility representatives stated that the container was holding water and was disposed of 
in the solid waste solidification process.  Provide the Department with the container’s waste 
determination documentation. 

 
b) Regulation: 40 CFR 262.34(a)(2) – Accumulation Time 
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“The date upon which each period of accumulation begins is clearly marked and visible for 
inspection on each container.”  Specifically, Perma-Fix of Orlando was improperly storing the 
following at the time of the December 2006 inspection: 

i. Aerosol cans 
ii. Oxygen canisters improperly 

iii. Seven 5-gallon containers used to determine waste compatibility 
iv. Three drums of used oil that were being held because they failed the halogen 

Dexsil Test 
 
Corrective Actions: All containers had been properly disposed of at the time of the February 
2007 inspection except the drums of hazardous waste used oil. 

 
c) Regulation: 40 CFR 262.34(a)(3) – Drum Labeling 

“While accumulated on-site, each container and tank is labeled or marked clearly with the words, 
’Hazardous Waste’.”  Specifically, Perma-Fix of Orlando was storing the following improperly at 
the time of the December 2006 inspection: 

i. Aerosol cans 
ii. Oxygen canisters improperly 

iii. Seven 5-gallon containers used to determine waste compatibility 
iv. Three drums of used oil that were being held because they failed the halogen 

Dexsil Test 
 
Corrective Actions: All containers had been properly disposed of at the time of the February 
2007 inspection except the drums of hazardous waste used oil. 
 

d) Regulation: 40 CFR 264.31 – Operation of Facility 
“Facilities must be operated to minimize the possibility of any unplanned sudden or non-sudden 
release of hazardous waste to air, soil, or surface water which could threaten human health or the 
environment.”  Specifically, Perma-Fix failed to properly empty numerous small containers of 
paint that were being stored in two 55-gallon drums; a solid waste roll-off had a container that 
was not properly emptied; additionally a separate 55-gallon drum of corrosive material appeared 
to be leaking. 
 
Corrective Actions: All containers had been properly disposed of at the time of the February 
2007 inspection. 
 

e) Regulation: 40 CFR 264.173(a) – Container Management 
“A container holding hazardous waste must always be closed during storage, except when it is 
necessary to add or remove waste.”  Specifically, Perma-Fix failed to properly close numerous 
small containers of paint that were being stored in two 55-gallon drums; a solid waste roll-off had 
a container that was not properly closed;  additionally a separate 55-gallon drum of corrosive 
material was not properly closed. 
 
Corrective Actions: All containers had been properly disposed of at the time of the February 
2007 inspection. 
 

f) Regulation:  40 CFR 279.22(c)(1) - Used Oil Container Labeling 
“Containers and above ground tanks used to store used oil at generator facilities must be labeled 
or marked clearly with the words ‘used oil’.”  Specifically, Perma-Fix failed to mark two 5-gallon 
containers with the words “used oil.” 
 
Corrective Action:  During the February 5, 2007 follow up inspection the containers were 
properly labeled. 
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g) Regulation:  40 CFR 279.44(a) and Florida Statue 403.121(4)(d) – Rebuttable Presumption 
for Used Oil, Determination 
“To ensure that used oil is not a hazardous waste under the rebuttable presumption of 
279.10(b)(1)(ii), the used oil transporter must determine whether the total halogen content of used 
oil being transported or stored at a transfer facility is above or below 1,000 ppm.”  Specifically, at 
the time of the December 6, 2006 and February 7, 2007 inspections Perma-Fix failed to determine 
the halogen content of six drums of used oil. 
 
Corrective Action:  The facility has since provided the Department with the results of the 
halogen test for the six containers in question.  Please provide the disposal documentation for the 
six containers.  Perma-Fix needs to review the facility’s operation plan to determine why the 
violation occurred and work to correct any problems identified. 
 

h) Regulation:  40 CFR 279.44(c) – Rebuttable Presumption for Used Oil, Hazardous Waste 
“If the used oil contains greater than or equal to 1,000 ppm total halogens, it is presumed to be a 
hazardous waste because it has been mixed with halogenated hazardous waste…”  Specifically, at 
the time of the December 6, 2006 inspection three containers of used oil were determined to be 
hazardous and were not being managed as such. 
 
Corrective Action:  The facility has since provided the Department with transfer and disposal 
documentation for the waste.  Ensure all employees are familiar with the operation plan to help 
prevent such violations in the future. 
 

i) Regulation: Florida Statues 403.161(1)(b) Permit No. SO48-0152516-002, Specific Condition 
17 and General Condition 8 and 62-701.710(4)(a)1 – Operational Requirements 
“All activities at the facility shall be performed in accordance with the manual and plans for the 
types of equipment that will be used.”  Specifically, The Solid Waste Transfer facility was not 
properly managing unacceptable waste as stated in the facility’s permit. 

 
During the December 6, 2006 inspection three of the containers of used oil had been tested for 
halogen content via a Dexsil test kit and failed indicating greater than 1000 ppm total halogens.  
Inspectors noted an additional six drums from the same generator that still required testing at the time 
of inspection. 
 
At the time of the February 5, 2007, inspection inspectors noted the same three drums from the 
December 2006 inspection and inquired about the containers.  The facility submitted a formal letter 
stating that a total of nine containers had been received by the same generator in September 2006; 
seven of the nine containers had failed the rebuttable presumption as having greater than 1000 ppm 
halogens and at that time should have been managed as hazardous waste.  These containers were not 
transferred to the hazardous waste TSDF until February 2007. 
 
Solid Waste Permit No. SO48-0152516-002, Specific Condition 17, Operation Plan: The facility 
operator shall be trained, Rule 62-701.320(15), F.A.C., and a copy of the operations plan that 
describes how the applicant shall comply with Rule 62-701.710(4), F.A.C. shall be kept at the 
facility. 
 
Perma-Fix of Orlando’s Operation Plan received by the Department on July 23, 2004, states the 
following in Section 3 Quality Control on page 2: 
 
“Operators at the Non Hazardous Solid Waste Transfer facility collect samples from in-coming 
drums that contain waste liquids and test them for halogen levels…any used oils that fail are 
considered unacceptable wastes.  These wastes are then immediately transported back to the 
Hazardous waste TSDF pending off-site disposal at a permitted hazardous waste facility.” 
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Corrective Action:  Provide the Department with the disposal documentation associated with the 
containers in question. 

 
15. CONCLUSION: 
 

Perma Fix, Orlando is a hazardous waste and used oil transporter, 10-day hazardous waste transfer 
facility, and permitted storage facility of solid and hazardous waste.  The two facilities were not in 
compliance at the time of either inspection. 
 
The hazardous waste storage and disposal operations at the facility are in the process of being reduced 
and operations moved to the Perma Fix Gainesville FL facility.  The facility needs to ensure the 
Department is notified of any major changes that occur in the future. 
 
                                          
                                              
Report Prepared By:     
   Jeff Waters 
 
   May 8, 2007__________ 
   Date 
 
Report Reviewed by: 
       
   Gloria-Jean De Pradine 
    
   April 26, 2007   
   Date 
 

    
   Lu Burson 
   Environmental Manger 
   Solid and Hazardous Waste 
 
   April 20, 2007  
   Date  



Perma-Fix, Rocket Blvd-Janine Kraemer-12/6/06 
 

   
Figure 1:  Empty containers? destined for non-haz   Figure 2:  Empty containers? destined for non-haz 
Dumpster       dumpster 
 

   
Figure 3:  Empty containers? destined for non-haz  Figure 4:  Empty containers? destined for non-haz 
Dumpster       dumpster 
 

   
Figure 5:  Empty containers? destined for non-haz  Figure 6:  Empty containers? destined for non-haz 
Dumpster       dumpster 



   
Figure 7:  Empty containers? destined for non-haz  Figure 8:  Open container 
dumpster 
 

  
Figure 9:  Improperly labeled, undated containers  Figure 10:  Improperly labeled, undated container 
 

  
Figure 11:  Improperly labeled, undated container  Figure 12:  Improperly labeled, undated containers 
 



  
Figure 13:  Open container of Oxygen canisters  Figure 14:  Container w/ possible release? 
 

  
Figure 15:  Miscellaneous aerosols, improperly managed Figure 16:   Miscellaneous aerosols, improperly 

managed 
 

  
Figure 17:  One of three roll off trailers of haz waste Figure 18:  Second roll off trailer 
 



  
Figure 19:  Consolidation area Figure 20:  Solid waste destined for landfill 
 

  
Figure 21:  Solid waste destined for landfill Figure 22:  Non-empty container in solid waste 

dumpster 
 

 
Figure 23:  Drum labeled as hazardous waste w/ waste codes  
D001, D007, D018, D021, D036, D039, P022, U002, U124, U220 
Also labeled as “Non-Regulated” on Perma-Fix label 



Perma-Fix, General Drive-Janine Kraemer-12/6/06 
 

   
Figure 1:  Hazardous waste label on non-hazardous   Figure 2:  Non-hazardous waste drum w/ label from 
Waste drum in Figure 2     Figure 1 
 

   
Figure 3:  Non-hazardous solidification container  Figure 4:  Used oil AST 
 

   
Figure 5:  Roll offs for solidified non-hazardous waste Figure 6:  Used oil filter roll off 
 



   
Figure 7:  Drums destined for solidification process  Figure 8:  Solidification container in Figure 3 
 

  
Figure 9:  Vehicle Maintenance Area, used oil container Figure 10:  Parts washer, no longer in use 
 

  
Figure 11:  Unknown drum     Figure 12:  Empty drums 
 



 
Figure 13:  Oily water tanker and spent antifreeze tank with truck  



Attachment 3 
Perma-Fix of Orlando, Inc. 
Jeff Waters - February 5, 2007 

     
Fig. 1-Hazardous waste storage area 1. Fig. 2-Hazardous waste storage area 2. 
 

      
Fig. 4-Hazardous waste storage area 3.  Fig. 4-Cosolidation Area 1 
 

    
Fig. 5-Used oil filters, roll-off container is containment.  Fig. 6-New hose for used oil tank. 




